
Amendment Procedure for Billing Rate Increases/Updates

Personal/ Professional Services 
Agreement to Agree or Contract
Guidelines
The following three step procedure must be used by an Agency Contract Administrator (Agency CA) when determining if an amendment to a Contract for an increase in billing rates is appropriate and should be approved.

Step 1 – Consultant Contractor Justification:  Agency CA forwards Step 1 criteria to any firm requesting an increase/update to billing rates on an Agreement to Agree or Contract.
Step 2 – Contract Administrator Justification: Upon receipt of Step 1 data submitted by firm, CA completes Step 2 verification process.  
Step 3 – Data Assessment and Summary:  Agency CA prepares summary of findings and determination.  Amendment packet is prepared for submission to PCM.
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STEP 1

(To be completed by Consultant Contractor)
Consultant Contractor Justification
Each Request for Proposal (RFP), Contract and Agreement To Agree (ATA) has been prepared to meet the Oregon Department of Transportation’s (Agency/ODOT) business need and has individual requirements.  Agency Contract Administrators (CA), Procurement and Contract Specialists and Auditors will be reviewing each amendment request separately for adherence to the parameters set forth in its applicable solicitation and contractual documentation.

The Agency may consider billing rate increases based on: 

1) Criteria set forth in the solicitation and Contract documents, and 

2) the current Consumer Price Index (CPI) or 5%, whichever is less. 

Documentation must be submitted by each Consultant Contractor that petitions the Agency for a billing rate increase (for their firm or any sub-contractors) on any personal/ professional services contract (Architectural & Engineering (A&E) and Non-A&E).  Taking into consideration the current state of the economy in Oregon, the CPI and any cost cutting measures your firm (Consultant Contractor) may have recently taken, justify your request for a billing rate increase by providing detailed answers to the following questions (a – f). 
The answers for a - c must be “Pass” or the billing rate increase will be denied.

a.)  Do the terms and conditions of the RFP and subject Contract allow for a billing rate increase?  Pass / Fail 
If so, what are they? Cite each clause from the RFP / Contract referencing increases.  
b.)  Has the Contract been in place for at least 12 months and was the last requested billing rate increase (if any) at least 12 months prior to this request?  Pass/Fail
c.)  Identify the amount of increase for each staff classification for the current amendment request. Is the requested billing rate increase in alignment with current CPI (www.econ.state.or.us/cpi.htm) or 5%, whichever is less, for each classification? Pass/Fail
d.)  If prior increases were granted on this Contract, identify the amount of increase for each staff classification during previous amendment. (e.g. 2%, 3.5%, 8%). 

e.)  Have the project deliverables been on time and accepted by the Agency?  If not, please explain.

f.)  Has, and/or will, the project stay within the not-to-exceed (NTE) amount?  If not, please explain.

Note: Updated billing rates amended into an ATA do not automatically roll over into previously executed Work Order Contracts. If appropriately justified (via steps 1 – 3 of the WOC Amendment procedures) and approved by the Agency each WOC must be amended to include updated rates prior to any invoicing.
Prepared By:______________________________________________________________________



Name, Title, Firm Name




Date
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Step 2
(To be completed by Agency CA)
Agency CA Justification
When a Consultant Contractor petitions the Agency to increase billing rates (prime or sub) on a Contract or ATA the Agency Contract Administrator (Agency CA) must prepare written findings to support and/or deny the request.

The following documentation must be submitted by each Agency CA that requests a billing rate increase on a personal/ professional services contract (Architectural & Engineering (A & E) and Non A & E). 

a.)  Have you verified the following information provided by the Consultant Contractor? 

The answers for a - c must be “Pass” or the billing rate increase will be denied.

Step 1 a
Pass _____ Fail _____




Comments:
Step 1 b
Pass _____ Fail _____




Comments: 
Step 1 c
Pass _____ Fail _____ (www.econ.state.or.us/cpi.htm)



Comments:
b.)  Is there enough time remaining in the ATA/Contract to make an amendment worthwhile to the Agency, at least 12 months. Pass/Fail 

c.)  Has the Contractor performance been within the parameters of the ATA/Contract?  Yes / No
If not, please explain.

d.)  Is there enough money in the ODOT project budget to allow for this billing rate increase? Yes / No
The Agency CA must answer items a – d in their entirety before proceeding to Step 3.

Note: Updated billing rates amended into an ATA do not automatically roll over into previously executed Work Order Contracts. If appropriately justified (via steps 1 – 3 of WOC Amendment procedures) and approved by the Agency each WOC must be amended to include updated rates prior to any invoicing.
Step 2 Verified/Completed By:__________________________________________________________





Name, Title and Section



Date
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Step 3
(To be completed by Agency CA)
Agency CA Data Assessment and Summary
Addressing the issues in Step 1 and Step 2 and assessing the data provided, prepare a brief summary stating why the approval or disapproval of this increase is in the best interest of ODOT.

Summary:

Note: If the Agency CA disapproves a billing rate increase, these documents are for your contract administration file and do not need to be sent to PCM.
When preparing an amendment request, Agency CAs must attach a copy of the documentation and findings from Steps 1, 2 and 3 to the amendment request form before forwarding it to the proper authority for signature. 
The signed amendment request form and justification documentation can then be forwarded to PCM for assignment and processing.  Note: If all three steps identified in the amendment procedure have not been completed in detail the request will be returned to the Agency CA for completion.
Step 3 Prepared/Approved By:__________________________________________________________





Name, Title and Section




Date
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